
 

 

 

 

Dare County Tourism Board Meeting 

February 27, 2025  

9 a.m. 
 
 
 
 

Curtis H. Creech Memorial Boardroom 
Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Offices 

One Visitors Center Circle, Manteo, NC 27954 



 

 

DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2025 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 
I. Call to Order    
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
 
III. Approval of Agenda 
     
IV. Approval of Minutes from the January 16, 2025 Meeting 
 
V. Public Comments 
 
VI. Chairman’s Remarks 
   
VII. Budget & Finance Report 
 
VIII. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates 
 
IX. Old Business  
     

X. New Business  
 
XI.       Board Member Comments 

 
XII.  Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting  
  

XIII.    Adjournment 
   
 
     

 



 

January 16, 2025 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 

DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2025 

9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

MANTEO, NC 27954 

 

 

ATTENDING:   

Mark Ballog, Mark Batenic, Tod Clissold, Tonia Cohen, Brenda Chasen, Terry Gray, John Head, Richard 

Hess, Tess Judge, Dennis Robinson, Mike Siers, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  

 

EXCUSED ABSENCE: David Hines and Wally Overman. 

 

STAFF: 

Lee Nettles, Executive Director  

Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  

Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  

Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager 

Jeff Schwartzenberg, Community Engagement Manager 

 

OTHERS ATTENDING: None. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 

by a moment of silence.  

 

The Clerk swore in the following Dare County Tourism Board Appointees:   

  

Mark Batenic, Town of Southern Shores 

Brenda Chasen, Town of Duck 

Tod Clissold, Town of Manteo 

Tonia Cohen, Outer Banks Hotel/Motel Association 

Richard Hess, Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce 

Dennis Robinson, Hatteras Island, At Large 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS: Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel, presented the following motion from the 

Nominating Committee as to the slate of candidates for the 2025 Steering Committee: 

 

• Chair: Dennis Robinson.  Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, 

Legal Counsel closed nominations and called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-

0).  

 

• Vice Chair: David Hines. Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, 

Legal Counsel closed nominations and called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-

0).  

 

• Treasurer: Tod Clissold. Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, 

Legal Counsel closed nominations and called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-

0).  

 

 



 

January 16, 2025 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

• Assistant Treasurer: John Head. Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor. Hearing 

none, Legal Counsel closed nominations and called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously 

(11-0).  

 

• Secretary: Tonia Cohen. Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, 

Legal Counsel closed nominations and called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-

0).  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Siers moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. Hess. There was 

no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Siers moved to approve the meeting minutes from December 19, 

2024 meeting.   Second by Mr. Head. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There were no public comments made. No written comments were received.  
 
PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 AUDIT: Jonathan Dail reviewed the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 audit. The Board received an unmodified opinion.  Following review, Mr. Batenic moved to 

accept the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit. Second by Mr. Siers. There was no discussion.  The motion 

passed unanimously (11-0). 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Mr. Clissold reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 

received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2024-2025 were up .63% compared to 2023-2024. 

 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES:  Lee Nettles: 

• noted a public hearing at the Town of Nags Head that added the boardwalk and pickleball as 

accepted uses at the Soundside Event Site and unified all the Dare County Tourism Board parcels 

under the Event Site designation. 

• provided an update about the AI widgets on website. Staff is still working to introduce a booking 

window that will work with both hotels/motels and short term rental agencies 

• reviewed the Outer Edge premier and plans to roll out all six videos 

• reviewed the marketing dashboard and visitation.  

 

Jeff Schwartzenberg noted progress on holding an OBX Student Summit, in collaboration with Dare 

County Schools.  The Summit will be held March 5, 2025 at Jennette’s Pier. 

 

Lee Nettles reported on recent sales tradeshows and events at the Soundside Event Site, on behalf of 

Lorrie Love.  

 

Aaron Tuell reviewed recent media coverage, noting several “Best” rankings by US News.  

 

Ms. Judge left the meeting at 10:00 a.m. 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  There was no new business before the Board. 

 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  Dennis Robinson welcomed new Board member Brenda Chasen, 

thanked the members for their support of him as Chairman, looked forward to a productive year. 

 

Mr. Batenic noted progress on rebuilding bridge over canal.  

 



 

January 16, 2025 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

Mr. Gray noted that Kill Devil Hills is in the process of cleaning up beach accesses for the upcoming 

season. 

 

Mr. Hess noted that the Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce Annual Meeting would be held later that 

evening (January 16, 2025). 

 

Ms. Cohen noted the arrival of J1 students in February for the Spring. 

 

Mr. Ballog noted that The 12 Bars of Christmas raised over $35,000 for charity from passport sales, with 

additional funds coming from fundraisers and pet donations. 

 

Mr. Clissold shared his experience of The 12 Bars of Christmas and reported on New Years Eve in 

Manteo.  

 

Ms. Chasen noted the Town of Duck recently held a goal setting meeting.  

 

SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:   

• The Board set their meeting schedule for the third Thursday of each month at 9 a.m. in Curtis 

Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC   

 

• The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 20, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech 

Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC [This 

meeting was later changed to February 27, 2025]. 

 

The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned 

the meeting at 10:37 a.m. 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 



$0

$50,000,000

$100,000,000

$150,000,000

$200,000,000

$250,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2024 15,588,394 15,256,753 23,855,777 33,495,901 57,369,540 162,956,697 181,861,471 157,867,180 70,396,614 36,914,698 17,709,005 12,869,300
2023 32,326,040 17,078,293 22,911,263 43,812,778 61,544,693 137,311,567 215,518,673 148,053,622 79,777,957 35,908,020 18,220,059 13,534,535
2022 32,129,068 17,071,361 22,897,441 45,219,347 67,998,385 136,993,703 203,794,691 142,641,161 73,185,366 43,568,138 18,554,321 10,195,045
2021 22,515,577 16,833,409 28,050,784 39,424,885 71,629,217 127,947,319 159,994,974 158,280,320 73,112,498 43,787,109 11,394,032 18,096,294
2020 8,223,680 6,788,236 3,538,436 715,316 28,192,673 103,467,906 152,256,684 139,737,864 63,775,711 41,364,509 17,053,031 11,266,628

Occupancy Collections

December          -4.92%
CYTD -4.83%



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2024 11,179,366 12,929,929 19,422,840 26,222,012 39,078,063 57,344,840 64,106,859 57,116,087 40,124,326 30,027,178 20,897,820 16,400,335
2023 15,014,241 12,282,779 19,052,221 29,882,256 37,191,059 53,653,158 62,371,753 54,381,491 39,511,303 30,360,180 19,332,007 15,703,818
2022 10,601,001 13,854,379 17,964,701 29,762,315 35,766,126 49,188,354 61,144,299 52,469,499 39,658,009 18,866,693 28,176,947 14,853,412
2021 10,669,210 9,647,064 17,851,725 26,101,925 36,273,162 48,603,545 55,983,285 45,615,512 38,713,169 29,131,584 17,621,266 15,637,654
2020 9,567,693 9,280,396 7,466,202 3,749,728 14,079,809 35,377,812 37,531,226 34,686,508 31,758,793 22,495,453 16,322,421 10,519,542

Meals Collections

December          4.44% 
CYTD                1.57%























































Marketing Dashboard

FY 24/25 Diff. % Change

29,047 -690 -2%

Completed Video Views 33,513,566 8,134,169 32%

Website Sessions 2,672,341 261,685 11%

Online Communities

Email Subscribers 87,872 1,956 2%

Facebook 712,000 -6,000 -1%

X (Twitter) 40,071 -829 -2%

Instagram 131,873 1,291 1%

Pinterest 23,600 100 0%

TikTok 112,200 17,700 19%

YouTube 3,810 3,810 #DIV/0!

Online Communities Subtotal 1,111,426 14,218 2%

23,500

1,093,398

85,916

718,000

40,900

130,582

94,500

2,410,656

thru January 2025

Trackable Guide (Print - Virtual)

FY 23/24

29,737

25,379,397

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



Executive Summary

Key Messaging:
• Outer Edge
• OBX Promise

Performance Overview:
• Awareness exceeded base goal projections for the first time this year and engagements increased significantly.
• Partially due to increased costs for traffic campaigns on Meta and mostly due to increased costs for Travel Guide conversion ads, traffic did not reach base goal projections. Additionally, conversion ads 

did not generate the projected volume of conversions.
• After experiencing increased costs, Ignite Social Media took the following steps:

• Discussed opportunities for optimization with a Meta rep and implemented changes. 
• After changes resulted in minimal impact, spending was paused for the rest of the month to prevent further inefficient spending. 

Next Steps & Recommendations:
• Wider campaign adjustments have been made to February’s conversion ad campaign, including reallocating unspent dollars from January. These adjustments include a slight expansion of the 

geotargeting radius to mitigate potential fatigue and campaign consolidation to reduce self-competition.
• Upcoming content/promotional focuses include accessibility mini guide, Cape Hatteras Lighthouse update progress, and additional shipwreck content). 
• Continue incorporating more real-time content (shipwreck, northern lights, snow) to capitalize on those special moments. 
• Reallocate YouTube shorts ad spend to Meta for Outer Edge episode promotion. 

Drive Awareness
KPI: Impressions

Drive Intent
KPI: Website Sessions Referred by Social Sources

Performance As Of: Jan 2025 Jan 2024 Base Goal Stretch Goal Performance As Of: Jan 2025 Jan 2024 Base Goal Stretch Goal
Current Month 12,401,814 11,105,974 8,527,553 12,791,329 Current Month 34,739 69,345 69,976 104,964

Cumulative Fiscal 29,883,041 32,356,191 27,265,911 40,898,867 Cumulative Fiscal 151,225 177,832 189,753 284,629
Cumulative % To Target 92% 110% 73% Cumulative % To Target 85% 80% 53%

Engage
KPI: Likes, Comments, Shares, Saves/Favorites, Video Views, Link Clicks, Media Clicks

Convert
KPI: Mini-Guide Requests, Physical Guide Requests, Guide PDF Downloads, eNews Sign-Ups

Performance As Of: Jan 2025 Jan 2024 Base Goal Stretch Goal Performance As Of: Jan 2025 Jan 2024 Base Goal Stretch Goal
Current Month 2,457,718 2,267,894 2,092,899 3,139,348 Current Month 3,459 8,547 6,181 9,890

Cumulative Fiscal 6,447,285 7,725,926 6,757,231 10,135,847 Cumulative Fiscal 9,680 15,870 12,151 19,441
Cumulative % To Target 83% 95% 64% Cumulative % To Target 61% 80% 50%

11



OBX Social Performance FY15/16 – FY24/25

Strategy 
Shift

Strategy 
Shift

Strategy 
Shift

Ignite Starts 
11/16

Ignite Starts 
11/16

Ignite Starts 
11/16

Pandemic

Pandemic

Pandemic

H1: July – December
H2: January - July

Strategy 
Shift

Ignite Starts 
11/16

Pandemic

FY2425 data pictured below represents July 2024 – January 2025

12



Engage - Community Growth
Highlights:
• The launch of Outer Edge 

drove a 50% increase in total 
subscriber growth, increasing 
from 1.8K to 2.8K.

• Net growth maintained with 
Facebook and Instagram 
gaining followers after 
months of attrition.

13



Connect M-o-M

14



Connect [Cumulative Performance]

15



Drive Intent

From the 34.7K socially-referred website sessions, visitors reached listing details over 
747 times, were referred to partner pages 476 times, requested the physical Travel 
Guide 1.3K times, and signed up for the eNewsletter 62 times, downloaded the 
Travel Guide pdf 378 times.

Note: deficit impacted by 
Travel Guide campaign 

underperformance/paused 
spend

16



Drive Intent [Cumulative Performance]

17



Engage

18



Engage [Cumulative Performance]

19



Convert

20



Convert [Cumulative Performance]

21



    DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

     COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT   

     FEBRUARY 27, 2025 
 
Outer Banks Long-Range Tourism Management Plan (LRTMP) Special Committee 
Due to scheduling conflicts, the Dare County Tourism Board Special Committee postponed its meeting on 

February 12, 2025 and will meet again on Wednesday, April 12, 2025 (9:00 a.m.) at the Outer Banks 

Visitors Bureau administrative offices on Roanoke Island.  

 

3rd Annual Non-Profit Mission Mixer 
Thursday, April 3, 2025 | 5:00pm | Outer Banks Brewing Station 

Presented by The Outer Banks Community Foundation and  

The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 

 

This free event is an opportunity for local nonprofit professionals, 

board members and volunteers to network with others who are 

making a difference in the community, as well as learn about the 

power of leveraging various media platforms and tools to help 

effectively communicate an organization’s story. 

 
 

Outer Banks Podcast Appearances  

The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau recently joined Outer 

Banks Association of REALTORS® CEO Willo Kelly and 

Director of Government Affairs Donna Creef on the 

inaugural OBAR® podcast – Let’s Get REAL® – to 

discuss the Outer Banks Long-Range Tourism 

Management Plan, The Outer Banks Promise, The 

Outer Edge video series and much more. The Bureau 

also joined Seaside Vacation’s Bryn Pittman for Episode #35 of their Outer Banks Podcast for a similar 

discussion on the organization’s destination stewardship and responsible tourism initiatives. 

 

OBVB to Highlight LRTMP at June 19 

Science on the Sound Lecture Series Event 

at Coastal Studies Institute 
The Bureau has been invited to present an update 

on the Outer Banks Long-Range Tourism 

Management Plan at the June 19 Science on the 

Sound lecture series event, hosted by the Coastal 

Studies Institute on the ECU Outer Banks Campus. The presentation is free, and the public is welcome and 

encouraged to attend. 

https://www.buzzsprout.com/2440963/episodes
https://outerbankspodcast.podbean.com/?_ga-ft=Z645Hg.AA.AA.AA.AA.XdXSxAxhRZiOXSMHCWDCmA..0
https://www.coastalstudiesinstitute.org/science-on-the-sound/
https://www.coastalstudiesinstitute.org/science-on-the-sound/
https://www.buzzsprout.com/2440963/episodes
https://outerbankspodcast.podbean.com/?_ga-ft=Z645Hg.AA.AA.AA.AA.XdXSxAxhRZiOXSMHCWDCmA..0
https://www.coastalstudiesinstitute.org/science-on-the-sound/


The Outer Banks Promise – Partner Spotlight: Carolina Designs Realty  
At its annual company retreat on January 30, 2025, Carolina Designs Realty collectively made The Outer 

Banks Promise. The company’s commitment to giving back to the community was the focus of their 

pledge. “We promise to continue supporting efforts and organizations that prioritize conservation, 

education and preservation of the unique history and culture of the Outer Banks.” We encourage other 

area businesses, groups and associations to share their commitment to enhancing stewardship in our 

community. To learn more, contact Jeff Schwartzenberg, Community Engagement Manager, at 

community@outerbanks.org.   

 

              
 

A Look Ahead: Q1/Q2 2025 Community Engagement and Stakeholder Outreach 

February 11 – Bridge USA J1 Summer Work Travel Community Meeting (Attendee) 

February 18-20 – Partnership and Community Engagement Forum – Cincinnati, OH (Attendee) 

February 25 – Outdoor NC Meeting // Year 2 – Trail Town Stewardship Program 

February 26 – Coastal Environmental Educators Network Meeting (Host) 

February 27 – Destination Stewardship Bi-Monthly Meeting (Attendee) 

February 28 – Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce Regional Economic Summit (Attendee) 

March 5 – TourismNext: OBX Student Summit (in collaboration with Dare County Schools) 

March 7 – OBX Community Services Collaborative Quarterly Meeting (Attendee) 

March 10 – East Carolina University Purple & Gold Bus Tour – Coastal Studies Institute (Presenter) 

March 14 – Dare County America250 Committee Meeting (Attendee) 

March 18 – Dare Community Housing Task Force Meeting (Attendee) 

March 19 – 2025 State of the County Event (Attendee) 

March 21-22 – Mountains-to-Sea Trail Gathering of Friends Annual Meeting (Sponsor/Presenter)  

April 3 – 3rd Annual Outer Banks Non-Profit Mission Mixer (Co-Host) 

April 6-8 – Visit NC Tourism Conference – Hickory, NC  (Attendee) 

April 9 – Dare County Tourism Board LRTMP Special Committee Meeting 

https://www.outerbanks.org/plan-your-trip/beaches/outer-banks-promise/
https://www.outerbanks.org/plan-your-trip/beaches/outer-banks-promise/
mailto:community@outerbanks.org
https://www.outerbanks.org/plan-your-trip/beaches/outer-banks-promise/


TOURISM SALES & EVENTS | INDUSTRY RELATIONS ACTIVITY – FEBRUARY 2025 
 
TOURISM SALES | Recent Trade Show Report: 
 
Tourism Sales participated in the American Bus Association (ABA) 
Marketplace in Philadelphia, PA, from January 31 to February 5, 
2025. The event attracted 2,700 delegates, including 300 tour 
operators. Our Bureau staff conducted two sets of pre-scheduled 
appointments, totaling 68 quality meetings—each lasting about 
seven minutes, much like "speed dating" for our destination. These 
sessions ranged from cultivating new business opportunities to 
assisting tour planners in organizing programs for our region this 
year. 
 
As a direct result of our participation at ABA, we have secured nine 
senior group tours scheduled for Spring and Fall 2025. Additionally, 
we maintained a presence with a booth throughout the show, 
where we promoted the Outer Banks Promise. Our giveaway was 
Promise Bracelets with the words: “Be Kind”, “Be Inspired”, ❤OBX 
and Wildlife ⭐. More than 80 tour operators took the Promise, 
with several expressing interest in having their group attendees take 
the Pledge when they visit the Outer Banks this spring and fall. Big 
THANK YOU to our partners from the Ramada Plaza and Hilton 
Garden Inn for helping us man our Booth at ABA Marketplace.  
 
Staff is currently following up on sales leads from the marketplace 
and will be distributing them to industry partners in the coming 
weeks. 
 
What Is a Marketplace? A commercial trade show that allows you to sell your destination to 
potential tour operators/companies in seven minutes.  Please note that 
staff is currently selling for the Fall 2025 and 2026 seasons. 
 
What’s the economic impact of a tour group: A fully loaded motorcoach (35 
passengers on average) on a charter or tour making an overnight stay contributes 
an average of $9,000 to $11,000 (USD) per day to the local economy in 
expenditures including meals, lodging, shopping, admission fees, souvenirs, and 
local taxes. – American Bus Association 
 
 

 



TOURISM SALES | Welcoming Back Student Groups | Snapshot of Upcoming Activity 

Two major motorcoach companies specializing in student group travel have reported a weaker-than-
expected spring season for student groups visiting the Outer Banks. Many of our spring student 
groups typically come from the western part of the state, where communities are still recovering 
from Hurricane Helene. As a result, several schools have postponed their 2025 spring trips to 2026. 
Young Transportation, originally set to transport 18 schools or student groups to the Outer Banks, 
now has only seven scheduled. Similarly, Christian Tours will bring eight groups, down from 14. While 
these figures represent just a portion of the total tours coming to the Outer Banks, they indicate a 
slowdown in the student travel market for Spring 2025. 
              
 
TOURISM SALES | Future Trade Show Dates and Locations: 

• April 6-8, 2025: Visit NC 365, Hickory, NC 
• June 14-18, 2025: US Travel’s IPW, Chicago, IL 

              
 
INDUSTRY RELATIONS: SAVE THE DATE: OBX Soft-Shell Week| May 12 – 17, 2025:  
The Bureau staff is once again spotlighting one of the Outer Banks' 
most beloved delicacies: softshell crabs. During this weeklong event, 
participating restaurants will showcase their unique takes on softshell 
crab dishes, inviting patrons to indulge and vote for their favorite OBX 
Softshell creation. Last year, the event featured 30 restaurants from 
Duck to Cape Hatteras and Roanoke Island, with 838 votes cast. This 
year, our goal is to expand participation to 35–40 restaurants, 
including a few on Hatteras Island. 
 

“The Fun Starts When the Shell Comes Off” 
              
 
INDUSTRY RELATIONS: Accommodations Inventories Requested: 
The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau is requesting updated 2025 room inventory numbers for hotels, 
motels, and bed & breakfasts to keep our database accurate. This information is vital for evaluating 
the lodging sector and enhancing our marketing and promotional efforts. 
 
All individual business responses remain confidential and will not be shared outside the Visitors 
Bureau.  
              
 
The Soundside Event Site | 2025 Calendar Attached:   
 
We’ve added two new car/truck shows for 2025. Please let us know if you should have any questions. 



2025 Soundside Event Site Schedule

Name of Event Date of Event
Event Times (times may change as 

event draws closer) Number of Atteedees Event Planner Site Reserved

Soundside Winter Market Saturday, March 22, 2025 (rain date: March 29, 2025) 12:00pm - 4:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Saturday, March 22, 2025

Outer Banks Bronco Beach Bash Saturday April 12 -Sunday, April 13, 20205 10:00am - 5:00pm 550 participants Brad Hoffman - 443-366-5944 Friday, April 11 - Sunday, April 13, 2025

Soundside Market Saturday, April 19, 2025 (rain date: April 26, 2025) 12:00pm - 4:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Saturday, April 19, 2025

OBX Rod and Custom Festival Friday, May 2- Saturday, May 3, 2025 10:00am - 6:00pm 750-1000 Michael Tillett -252-305-5789 Monday, April 28 – Monday, May 5, 2025

Sumospeed Beach Bash Saturday, May 31, 2025 11:00am - 6:00pm 1000- (Not all at one time) Nick Gressley - 757-681-2563 Saturday, May 31, 2025

Soundside Fun Fair Thursday, June 5-Sunday, June 8, 2025 5:00pm - 10:00pm
4000 - over all the event day; about 

800 per night
Jody Caldwell - 757-620-8204; 
Sara Sampson-252.441.0614 x2 Tuesday, June 3 – Monday, June 9, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 18, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, June 18, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 25, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, June 25, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 2, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 2, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 9, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 9, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 16, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 16, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 23, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 23, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 30, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, July 30, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 6, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, August 6, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 13, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, August 13, 2025

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 20, 2025 9:00am -1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Wednesday, August 20, 2025

OBX Multi-Hull Sailfest (tentative) Friday, September 5 - Sunday, September 7, 2025 9:00am - 5:00pm 200 Hardy Peters - 252-489-3491 Thursday, September 4 - Sunday, September 7, 2025

OBX Jeep Invasion Friday, September 19 - Saturday, September 20, 2025 9:00am - 5:00pm 1000 (not all at one time) Steve House - 252-305-9258 Thursday, September 18 - Sunday, September 21, 2025

Garage Band Charities Cruise Saturday, October 4, 2025 10:00am - 5:00pm 250-500 Michael Tillett -252-305-5789 Friday, October 3 - Sunday October 5, 2025

Outer Banks Seafood Festival Saturday, October 18, 2025 10:30am - 6:00pm 8000-10000 (Not all at one time) Karen Brown - 252-564-2852 Tuesday, October 14-Wednesday, October 22, 2025

OBX Brewtag Saturday, October 25, 2025 11:00am - 6:00pm 2000-3000 James Kahle - 252.305.0005 Thursday, October 23-Monday, October 27, 2025

OBX Show Fest Friday, November 8 - Satuday, November 9, 2025 9:00am - 5:00pm 1000 Eric Czap - 910.398.5011 Friday, November 8 - Sunday, November 10, 2025

Soundside Holiday Market Sunday, November 23, 2025 12:00pm - 4:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Sunday, November 23, 2025

Soundside Holiday Market Sunday, November 30, 2025 12:00pm - 4:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Sunday, November 30, 2025

Soundside Holiday Market Sunday, December 14, 2025 12:00pm - 4:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time) Alex Brewer - 252-564-5251 Sunday, December 14, 2025



 

 

Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
 

PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: February 2025 
  
BEST LISTS 
 
Southern Living | Jan 2025 “15 Charming Beach Towns to Visit this Winter” Nags Head was 
highlighted as a coastal destination this winter as part of a regional roundup. The Southern Living 
team has been updating their Outer Banks destination guides in anticipation of a larger article due 
out in March 2025. 

 
EARNED MEDIA 
 
Islands | Oct 2024 “Visit North Carolina’s Coast for Waterfront Shopping And Dining At This 
Artsy Beach Town” Kitty Hawk is featured as a destination with cool museums, art galleries and 
restaurants in this article. https://bit.ly/3Q0alvs 
 
Islands | Jan 2025 “One of North Carolina’s Best Beach Towns Is a Chic Getaway Embodying 
the Essence of The Outer Banks” Nags Head is featured as a favorite place on the NC coast by 
tourists and locals alike. The article shares a brief history of the town and highlights local points of 
interest. https://bit.ly/3Q0alvs 

 
Southern Living | Jan 2025 “18 Best Things to Do in Nags Head” Aaron worked with Travel Editor 
Tara McKay on a press visit in 2024. Nags Head gets a big online feature with plenty of itinerary 
and tourism experiences to discover in this guide. https://bit.ly/3X61f4f 
 
Southern Living | Jan 2025 “12 Best Things to Do in Duck” Aaron worked with Travel Editor Tara 
McKay on a press visit in 2024. The Town of Duck gets a big online feature with plenty of itinerary 
and tourism experiences to discover in this guide. https://bit.ly/4b616Ds 
 
Southern Living | Jan 2025 “12 Best Things to Do on Hatteras Island, North Carolina” This is a 
fantastic press article published during prime booking season. Aaron worked with Travel Editor 
Tara McKay on a press visit in 2024 and we anticipate a fully developed print article in March 
2025. https://bit.ly/3CWjX7o  
 
IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
Business North Carolina | TBD 2025 Lee was interviewed by Kathy Blake for the industry 
magazine about the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau efforts in sustainable destination management, 
which include the Long-Range Tourism Management Plan, the OBX Promise, The Outer Edge 
video series and our work with local non-profits.  

 
Wonders Within Reach | Mar 2025 Aaron reviewed the content for the Outer Banks on the top 
ten disability blog for family travel administered by Jenn Allen. Wonders Within Reach publishes an 
annual list of accessible U.S. Beaches that has been featured in both Conde Nast and USA Today. 
 
MEDIA AND INFLUENCER TRIPS 
 
EveryQueer | TBD 2025 Aaron met the founder and CEO Meg Ten Eyck at IMM in NYC this 
January. Meg has been cited as a leading expert in LGBTQ travel and selected as Woman of the 
Year for Facebook’s initiative with Girl Gone International. EveryQueer cites itself as one of the last 
remaining publications that prioritizes LGBTQ+ women, transgender and non-binary people. We 
are looking at a press trip that would include content generation for outerbanks.org and social 
channels.  







DESTINATIONS › UNITED STATES

By Grae Gleason
Oct. 6, 2024 1:45 pm EST

North Carolina's Outer Banks region stretches across over 100 miles of coastline. While the
Southern Outer Banks area is popular for Crystal Coast family vacations, northern beach
towns like Kitty Hawk steal the show for travelers seeking artsy, cultural experiences.
Located about four hours north of the Crystal Coast, Kitty Hawk pairs its fascinating history of
innovation with a world of modern delights for curious visitors. Once home to early flights by
the Wright brothers, this charming coastal village invites vacationers to peruse its impressive
collection of art galleries, waterfront boutiques, and incredible restaurants.

With plenty of sun and temperatures in the 80s, summer is Kitty Hawk's most popular tourist
season. While the summer months provide travelers with classic beachy opportunities,
insiders say Kitty Hawk's best season is actually fall. Thanks to lighter crowds and mild
weather that sticks around through December, autumn is a wonderful time to explore Kitty
Hawk. No matter when you visit, make the most of your trip with this guide to Kitty Hawk's
best art destinations, shopping spots, and dining options.

Visit North Carolina's Coast For Waterfront
Shopping And Dining At This Artsy Beach Town

tokar/Shutterstocktokar/Shutterstock

2/18/25, 5:04 PM Visit North Carolina's Coast For Waterfront Shopping And Dining At This Artsy Beach Town

https://www.islands.com/1679904/north-carolina-coast-waterfront-shopping-dining-artsy-beach-town-kitty-hawk/ 1/4



Kitty Hawk's top art galleries, murals, and other creative
curiosities

Kitty Hawk isn't just one of America's best beach vacation destinations, it's also a hot spot for
the arts. Architectural wonders, art galleries, and public murals make Kitty Hawk an excellent
place for visitors to embrace their creative side. During a stroll down Ocean Boulevard, you
can check out the Modernist aesthetics of Kitty Hawk's Flat Top Cottages. Designed by artist
and former Southern Shores mayor Frank Stick, these beachfront homes speak to the
region's history and sensibilities. Architecturally inclined visitors can learn more during the
annual Southern Shores Historic Flat Top Cottage Tour, typically held in April.

Kitty Hawk's free public art attractions also blend the creative and historic. Less than a mile
from the Kitty Hawk Pier, the Monument to a Century of Flight showcases sculptures that tell
the story of the Wright brothers. About two miles down the road, artist Sam Welty's Wright
Brothers Mural further honors the aviation pioneers. Eagle-eyed art enthusiasts can spot
more murals decorating the walls of local shops and restaurants like The Spot, Art's Place,
and Shipwreck's Taphouse.

Continue your artistic explorations at one of Kitty Hawk's great galleries. At Absolutely Outer
Banks, you can grab a handcrafted souvenir or join an art class and make one yourself. For a
look at works by multiple local artists, head to KDH Cooperative Gallery & Studios. Nearby
Seagreen Gallery in Nags Head is also worth a visit for jewelry, furniture, and more created
using repurposed materials.

The best waterfront shops and restaurants in Kitty Hawk

Bhushan Thakurdwarkar/ShutterstockBhushan Thakurdwarkar/Shutterstock

2/18/25, 5:04 PM Visit North Carolina's Coast For Waterfront Shopping And Dining At This Artsy Beach Town

https://www.islands.com/1679904/north-carolina-coast-waterfront-shopping-dining-artsy-beach-town-kitty-hawk/ 2/4



The Wildly Varied
Sea Life You'll Find

You've Been
Warned: Avoid This

Stop Dressing Like
This At The Airport,

The Most Peaceful
Caribbean Island Is

Search for treasure at Kitty Hawk's unique boutiques and specialty stores. If you're shopping
for cute clothes, swimwear, and accessories, Starr Boutique is the place to go. For cozy
leisurewear, hit up Gray's near the CHKD Thrift Store. Bookish travelers can visit Island
Bookstore for everything from novels to stationery, and antiquing enthusiasts can discover
charming knick knacks at B&B Antiques. Shoppers on a budget will appreciate the region's
reputation as one of the cheapest East Coast beach towns.

You'll also find plenty of oceanfront dining options in Kitty Hawk. Start your day with
pancakes at Stack 'em High, a beloved local breakfast spot within walking distance of Kitty
Hawk Beach. For a delectable lunch or dinner, Black Pelican welcomes visitors year-round
(only closed on major holidays). While seafood is the eatery's main draw, diners will also find
kid- and vegetarian-friendly menu options. Looking for a fancier place to enjoy dinner and
drinks? Try Ocean Boulevard Bistro & Martini Bar for an upscale, gourmet experience.

Jeffery Scott Yount/ShutterstockJeffery Scott Yount/Shutterstock

Recommended

2/18/25, 5:04 PM Visit North Carolina's Coast For Waterfront Shopping And Dining At This Artsy Beach Town

https://www.islands.com/1679904/north-carolina-coast-waterfront-shopping-dining-artsy-beach-town-kitty-hawk/ 3/4



DESTINATIONS › UNITED STATES › NORTH CAROLINA

By Jonathan Houston
Dec. 1, 2024 6:15 am EST

If you've ever been to North Carolina, you know it has a little bit of everything. The western
side of the state touches the Great Smoky Mountains, as well as one of the oldest mountain
ranges in America, located in Uwharrie National Forest.

On the eastern edge, North Carolina boasts some of the best coastal living in the country.
The entire coastline is full of barrier islands and inlets, and you can experience some
incredible North Carolinian culture in towns like Southport, one of the oldest and happiest
towns in the state.

But if you go further up the coast, you'll run into the city of Nags Head. This place is a favorite
for tourists and locals alike, thanks to its tranquil beach scenery, fun and festive atmosphere,
and its central proximity to the rest of the Outer Banks. So, if you're looking for a unique and
memorable North Carolina vacation, this is a destination that should be at the top of your list.

One Of North Carolina's Best Beach Towns Is A
Chic Getaway Embodying The Essence Of The
Outer Banks

chasin__views/Shutterstockchasin__views/Shutterstock

2/18/25, 5:03 PM One Of North Carolina's Best Beach Towns Is A Chic Getaway Embodying The Essence Of The Outer Banks

https://www.islands.com/1722208/what-makes-nags-head-north-carolina-best-beach-town-chic-getaway-essence-outer-banks/ 1/4



A brief history of Nags Head, North Carolina

First, what is a nags head and why is this beachside community named after it? Well,
according to legend, pirates in the area would tie lanterns around the necks of young horses
(aka nags) and walk them along the beach. Ships would believe these lights to be of other
boats and venture close to shore. Once they ran aground on the shoals, the pirates would
plunder the ships accordingly.

Why residents would name their town after such unscrupulous activities is unknown, but
what is known is that Nags Head has always been something of a resort town. One of the first
to recognize its potential was Francis Nixon, who purchased 200 acres in 1830 to build a
summer retreat, and he would invite friends and family. Over time, others joined suit, and the
whole area became a tourist hotspot.

In 1838, the first official hotel was built in the area, and the magazine Harper's New Monthly
published an article about the burgeoning resort destination (and its name origins) in 1860.
This article is one of the first time the town is called "Nags Head" in print, although it would
certainly not be the last. Growth exploded during the late 90s and early 2000s, but it was
stalled by Hurricane Isabel in 2003. Today, Nags Head is a modern vacation paradise that
always rebounds quickly after a storm.

What to do when visiting Nags Head

Photography By P. Lubas/Getty ImagesPhotography By P. Lubas/Getty Images

2/18/25, 5:03 PM One Of North Carolina's Best Beach Towns Is A Chic Getaway Embodying The Essence Of The Outer Banks

https://www.islands.com/1722208/what-makes-nags-head-north-carolina-best-beach-town-chic-getaway-essence-outer-banks/ 2/4



Because Nags Head is such a historic city, one of the best things to do is explore as much of
the older parts of the area as possible. For example, you can stroll down Millionaire's Row
(aka the Unpainted Aristocracy) and see many original cottage homes built for rich tourists
more than 75 or 80 years ago. Similarly, you can visit Bodie Island Light Station, which has
helped ships avoid the craggy shoals since 1870.

If you're more into nature, you can walk along the miles of beaches and eventually find
yourself at Jeanette's Pier. Originally built in 1939, the pier has undergone significant
renovations over the decades (partly due to hurricane damage). However, it still retains its
old-fashioned charm and provides a fabulous view of the horizon. Alternatively, you can head
up north and visit Jockey's Ridge State Park, home of some of the oldest and tallest sand
dunes in the region.

Finally, you can use Nags Head as a base of operations to explore the rest of the Outer
Banks. There's Roanoke Island next door (home of the North Carolina Aquarium and the site
of the first English settlement in America). You can also drive along Highway 12, hitting
numerous beaches, towns, and islands, like Ocracoke Island, home to a quaint village with
New England charm.

Dennis Govoni/Getty ImagesDennis Govoni/Getty Images

Recommended

2/18/25, 5:03 PM One Of North Carolina's Best Beach Towns Is A Chic Getaway Embodying The Essence Of The Outer Banks

https://www.islands.com/1722208/what-makes-nags-head-north-carolina-best-beach-town-chic-getaway-essence-outer-banks/ 3/4


































































	COVER
	February 27 2025 BOARD AGENDA
	January 16, 2025 DCTB  Minutes
	Budget & FInance Report
	Occupancy Graph Feb Packet
	Meals Graph Feb packet
	b1
	b3
	b4

	Marketing Dashboard 
	January 2025 Dashboard
	HY Dashboard
	Ignite MD
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Executive Summary

	Untitled Section
	Slide 2: OBX Social Performance FY15/16 – FY24/25
	Slide 3: Engage - Community Growth
	Slide 4: Connect M-o-M
	Slide 5: Connect [Cumulative Performance]
	Slide 6: Drive Intent
	Slide 7: Drive Intent [Cumulative Performance]
	Slide 8: Engage
	Slide 9: Engage [Cumulative Performance]
	Slide 10: Convert
	Slide 11: Convert [Cumulative Performance]



	CEM Report - 022025
	Tourism Sales
	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 022725.pdf
	2025 Event Site Master  - Feb 2025.pdf

	Public Relations
	Feb 2025 Board Packet
	Feb 2025 Board Packet - articles
	15 Winter SL 2025
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.06.42 PM

	Visit North Carolina_s Coast For Waterf...ng And Dining At This Artsy Beach Town
	One Of North Carolina_s Best Beach Town...bodying The Essence Of The Outer Banks
	18 NH SL 2025
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.07.44 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.08.45 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.09.09 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.09.30 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.09.55 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.10.32 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.10.46 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.11.03 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.11.16 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.11.31 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.11.59 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.12.13 PM

	12 Duck SL 2025
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.12.56 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.13.08 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.16.24 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.16.45 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.16.57 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.17.20 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.18.06 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.18.21 PM

	15 Hatteras SL 2025
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.32.50 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.33.05 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.33.21 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.33.30 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.33.42 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.33.51 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.01 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.11 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.22 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.33 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.45 PM
	Screenshot 2025-02-18 at 4.34.57 PM






